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IN THP SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

_________________ _x

TENNESSEE s

Petitioner i

V. i No. 83-2143

HARVEY J. STREET :

_________________ _x

Washington, D.C.

Monday, March 18, 1985 

The above-entitled matter came on for oral 

argument before the Supreme Court of the United States 

at 10*08 o'clock a.m.

APPEARANCESj

ROEERT A. GRUNOW, ESQ., Associate Chief Deputy Attorney 

General of Tennessee, Nashville, Tennessee; on 

behalf of petitioner.

JOSHUA IRA SCHWARTZ, ESQ., Assistant to the Solicitor

General, Department of Justice, Washington, D. C.; 

on behalf of the United States as Amicus curiae in 

support of petitioner.

LANCE J. ROGERS, ESQ., Washington, D. C.; on behalf of 

respondent.
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PROCEEDINGS

CHIEF JUSTICE BURGER: We will hear arguments 

first this morning in the State of Tennessee v. Harvey 

Street.

Mr. Grunow, you may proceed whenever you are

ready.

ORAL ARGUMENT OF ROBERT A. GRUNOW, ESQ.

ON BEHALF OF THE PETITIONER

MR. GRUNOW; Mr. Chief Justice, and may it 

please the Court;

This criminal case is here on a writ of 

certiorari to the Tennessee Court of Criminal Appeals 

whch reversed Defendant Street's first degree murder 

conviction and sentence of life imprisonment and 

remanded the case for a new trial.

The question before this Court is whether a 

nontestifying accomplice's confession can be 

constitutionally used on rebuttal to impeach the 

defendant's claim that his own confession was a coerced 

imitation of the accomplice 's.

The facts relevant to this inquiry are as

follows;

This prosecution arises out of the 1981 murder 

of a 72 year old man who was found hanged outside his 

burglarized home in a small mountain community in east
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Tennessee. The defendant# a Clifford Peele# and five 

other young adults, were charged with murder# and 

defendant Street's case was severed from the others.

The state's proof in chief at Street's trial 

consisted of several confessions by the defendant and 

testimony of law enforcement officers concerning the 

scene of the crime that tended to corroborate certain 

details of the defendant's confession.

From the time of its opening argument through 

its case in chief# the state did not mention the 

existence of Peele's confession. Thereafter, the 

defendant presented an alibi defense and took the 

stand. In his direct testimony the defendant admitted 

that Feele had given a confession which had implicated 

the defendant in the murder. The defendant also 

admitted that he gave a confession but maintained it was 

merely a coerced imitation of Peele's earlier 

confession.

With regard to this claim, the defendant 

maintained that prior to taking his confession# the 

sheriff repeatedly read him Peele's confession. The 

defendant also claimed that when taking his confession, 

the sheriff interrupted him any time his account varied 

from Peele's and demanded that the defendant replicate 

Peele's version, which the defendant then did.

4
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As part of its rebuttal proof, the state for 

the first time in this case sought to introduce Peele's 

confession into evidence. Over objection, the state was 

allowed to introduce the confession for the limited, 

non-hearsay purpose of establishing that it was said, 

and with the express goal of impeaching the defendant's 

parroting claim with the most appropriate evidence 

a vailable.

Limiting instructions were given on three 

occasions, and the record clearly indicates that the 

state carefully limited its use of and argument on the 

accomplice's confession to the impeachment purpose for 

which it was introduced.

Thereafter, the defendant was confict.ed of 

first degree murder and was given the only sentence 

permitted in this case under state law, life 

imprisonment. On appeal, the Tennessee Court of 

Criminal Appeals reversed the conviction of the 

defendant on the ground that the introduction of Peele's 

confession under the circumstances of this case denied 

the defendant his confrontation rights under the Sixth 

Am endmen t.

The state urges this Court to reverse the 

decision below since the limited introduce of the 

accomplice's confession for the impeachment purposes on

5
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rebuttal did not violate the defendant's confrontation 

rights. We contend that limiting instructions were 

adequate in this case to avoid a confrontation clause 

violation for four reasons which I will summarize and 

then address in sequence.

First, the manner of in troducti on of the

questioned evidence created littl e if any likelihood of

imp reper j ury consideration of th at evide nee.

Second, there existed 1 egitimat e and

com pelling reasons justifying the state's use of such

evi dence i n light of the defendan t’s parr oting claim.

Third , no suitable alte rnatives existed.

And fourth, under the c ircumsta nces of this

cas e , the evidence wa s not devast ating in nature.

In applying the confron tation c lause to the

adra is sion into eviden ce of nontes tif ying accomplice

con fession s, Bruton, Douglas and the Park er plurality of

thi s Court have addre ssed two bas ic quest ions; first,

whe ther th e manner of introductin of such evi den ce

ereates a substantial likelihood of impro per

con siderat ion of that evidence ag ainst th e defendant,

and second , if so, wh ether the re suiting risk of unfair

pre j udice as a matter of policy o r practi cal necessity

out weighs the ability of a jury to follow limiting

ins tructions given . We suggest t hat both questions are

6
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answered in the negative in this case

As to the first basic question, the manner of 

introduction created little if any likelihood of 

improper consideration. Unlike prior cases in this are 

where no legitimate inferences against the defendant 

could he drawn from the evidence placed before the jury, 

in this case there was a legitimate inference that could 

be drawn from the introduction of Peele's statement, 

namely, that Peele's confession was sufficiently 

different from the defendant's so as to negate the 

defendant's parroting claim

QUESTIONi This was not a joint trial, was

it?

ME. GRUNOWs It was not, Your Honor.

The evidence was introduced by the state only 

after the defendant had already focused the jury's 

attention on the existence of the accomplice’s 

confession.

QUESTIONS And after it had been denied by 

state officials, categorically denied.

MR. GRUNOWs Your Honor is speaking of the 

introduction?

QUESTIONS Before it was introduced. Didn't 

the sheriff take the stand and say it's not true?

MR. GRUNOWs That's correct, Your Honor.

7
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QUESTION; So it had been adequately denied,

hadn't it?

NR. GRUNOW; Your Honor, our position is that 

that did not make it adequately denied.

QUESTION; But it had -- well, it had been.

MR. GRUNOW; It had been denied, but it became 

a swearing contest at that point between the defendant 

and the sheriff.

QUESTION; Well, the Court of Appeals doesn't 

agree with you on that.

HR. GRUNOW; That is correct, Your Honor.

QUESTION; Specifically, specifically, the 

Court said no. The Court said that it was used in the 

argument to the jury as to express details of the crime, 

which is in addition to a falsehood claim.

MR. GRUNOW; We believe, Your Honor, that the 

conclusion of the Court of Criminal Appeals below rested 

on a faulty assumption that because of its appraisal of 

Bruton and Douglas, they felt that it always had to 

be —

QUESTION: Well, let me read you one

sentence. Here the alleged confessor was not even 

called to the stand. The statements inculpating the 

defendants stood basically unchallenged as the state 

directed inquiry not to those allegations but to the

8
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factual statements surrounding the scene of the crime.

Do you agree with that?

MR. GRUNOW: No, Your Honor.

QUESTION: Then the Court was wrong.

ME. GRUNOW: Yes, Your Honor.

QUESTION: Factually.

MR. GRUNOW: It was wrong assuming those facts 

and interpreting them the way they did as a matter of 

federal constitutional law.

QUESTION: Do you agree with this statement,

that in this case, while admission of the confession was 

not technically used to prove its truth, the state 

actually placed before the jury testimony incriminating 

the defendant made by one not available for cross 

examination.

Do you agree with that statement?

MR. GRUNOW: No, Your Honor.

It is our position that because of the limited 

nature of the statement's introduction in this case, it 

was not offered to prove the truth of that statement but 

was rather merely entered to show what that statement 

was, to directly impeach on rebuttal the defendant's 

claim that he parroted the very terms of that other 

confession.

We believe that the Court of Criminal Appeals

9
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below misapplied this Court's doctrines as enunciated in 

Bruton and Douglas and the Parker plurality to find that 

there necessarily had to be a substantial likelihood cf 

improper consideration. It is our position that that 

simply did not occur in this case.

QUESTIONj How did the subject of a confession 

first come into the record of the case?

MR. GRUNOW; As to Peele's confession?

QUESTION; How did the subject of a confession 

first get into the record and called to the attention cf 

the jury?

MR. GPUNOW; Your Honor, the subject first 

came in in the defense attorney's opening remarks to the 

jury in which he pointed out that a co-defendant, Peele, 

had confessed and had implicated Street in the murder.

In this case, as to the substantial likelihood 

of improper consideration, the defendant focused the 

jury's attention on the existence of the accomplice's 

confession. We submit that this is important because 

the jury had already been informed by the defendant that 

the accomplice had confessed and had implicated him in 

the murder, thereby avoiding the potential for any 

proper consideration of the confession as introduced 

later by the state.

As to the second basic question raised by this

10
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court in prior decisions, bcth as a policy and practical 

matter, any resulting risk of unfair prejudice 

occasioned by the introduction of such limited purpose 

evidence on rebuttal was eliminated through the use of 

limiting instructions. In Bruton, this Court considered 

three factors in determining whether the introduction of 

such evidence would further rather than impede the 

search for truth, first, whether adequate justification 

exists for the use of the questioned evidence; second, 

whether alternatives exist in the pursuit of truth to 

avoid any conflict; and third, whether the devastating 

nature of the evidence is too great as a practical 

matter to be cured by a limiting instruction.

QUESTION; May I ask a factual question to be 

sure I have this right?

Is it correct that the defendant at the trial 

did not challenge the fact that this -- that he said the 

words that were said to be his confession? Rather, only 

his position was he said them under coercion and sc 

forth?

MR. GRUNOW; That is correct.

QUESTION; But the actual text was not -- 

there is no real dispute about that.

MR. GRUNOW; That is correct.

QUESTION; Okay. I wanted to be sure.

11
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MF. GBUNOW As to the first factor, there

were legitimate and compelling reasons justifying the 

state's use of such evidence in this case. In Bruton 

and Parker, this court dealt with judicial economy in a 

joint trial as a justification for the use. Here, the 

more important justification lies in the defendant's 

election to place before the jury his parroting claim 

which called into question the very terms of his 

accomplice's confession.

Now, as a practical matter, the state was 

justified in using the accomplice's confession because 

it was the strongest and only adequate evidence to 

directly challenge that defendant's claim. As a policy 

matter, after making his parroting claim, the defendant 

should not be allowed to invoke the confrontation clause 

tc bar the limited non-hearsay rebuttal use of such 

evidence. Such invokation of the confrontation clause 

would impede the ability of the jury to assess the 

credibility of the defendant's claim, thereby posing a 

grave risk of perversion of the truth-seeking function 

of the trial. It would also permit the defendant to use 

the confrontation clause as a shield to subvert the very 

mission of that clause as ensuring the fairness and 

accuracy of the criminal claim.

Such a policy is consistent with past

12
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decisions of this Court. In 1948 in Michelson v. United 

States, this Court recognized that evidence which may be 

too prejudicial to introduce in the state's proof in 

chief, even with limiting instructions, may nevertheless 

be used for impeachment purposes once the defendant 

elects to put that issue into evidence by taking the 

stand.

How, Michelson v. United States admittedly 

does not raise constitutional questions. However, other 

cases cited in our brief suggest that constitutional 

protections, whether afforded by prophylactic 

exclusionary rules or by direct application of 

constitutional rights, should not provide a defendant 

with a shield to bar the legitimate impeachment 

techniques in assessing the credibility of a defendant’s 

claim that he assarts on the stand.

QUESTION! Mr. Grunow, are there any limits in 

your view on the use of such evidence by the state? Is 

redaction of the statement required on occasion? Are 

there any limitations in your view on the use of the 

evidence for impeachment purposes?

MR. GRUNOKj I will address both the 

limitations as well as the possibility of redaction,

Your Honor.

As to limitations, we suggest that it has to

13
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be relevant to the impeachment purpose for which it is 

introduced, that many impeachment purposes require that 

the evidence be offered for the truth of the matter 

asserted. Where, as in this case, it is offered 

properly for a relevant, limited, non-hearsay purpose, 

to merely show that that statement was made, it would be 

proper.

QUESTION: Oh, yes, assuming it is relevant,

are there any limitations by virtue of the prejudicial 

nature of the evidence?

NR. GRUNQK; It is quite possible that the 

prejudicial impact in certain occasions may outweigh its 

probative value, and we simply say that this is not that 

type of case, and we do not want this Court to give a 

broad ruling to that effect. But when in fact it is 

relevant and these other factors weigh so heavily in its 

favor for admission, we suggest that there are 

compelling reasons to admit it.

As to the redaction issue, we suggest that is 

the third factor in this case -- the second factor in 

this case, that no effective alternatives existed. 

Redaction or limited use simply would not have permitted 

the state to adequately use the confession to challenge 

tha parroting --

QUESTION; But didn't the Court of Criminal

14
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Appeals say to the contrary?

MR. GRUNOWj They did. Your Honor, but they 

did not offer any suggestion as to how it might be 

redacted?

QUESTION: But they did hold, did they not,

that there might have been redaction without destroying 

the state’s impeachment use, didn't they?

ME. GRUNCWi They did hold that.

QUESTION; And you disagree with that.

MR. GRUNOW; I disagree with that, Your Honor 

In this case, in the peculiar facts of this case, the 

defendant did not take the stand and simply say that 

some portions of his confession were parroted. He said 

any time that his version varied with Peale's, the 

sheriff would force him to replicate Peele's 

confession. Because of that type of claim, it was very 

relevant and in fact the most significant evidence to 

introduce this confession for the limited purposes which 

it was in fact introduced for.

QUESTION* Would it have impressed the Court 

of Appeals or your court below if you had called the 

other, the person who had already been convicted and who 

was close by in jail?

You didn't call the confesser, did you?

MR. GRUNOW* No, we did not. Your Honor.

15
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QUESTION; Yes Well, first tell me why you

didn’t.

MR. GRUNOWf The reason for that, Your Honor, 

is that his testimony would have only gone to the 

veracity of his confession, and that was wholly 

immaterial to the use for which the state was 

introducing the evidence. We did not -- it simply was 

not part of the state's case. We only wanted to give 

the jury, in assessig the defendant's claim, the best 

possible evidence to do that, namely, Peele’s 

confession.

QUESTION t Well, what if you had called him 

and he had been in the courtroom? Do you suppose that 

would have made any difference to the court below?

MR. GRUNOWi I don't believe so. Your Honor.

QUESTION; He could have cross examined him.

MR. GRUNOW: He could be cross examined, but 

on issues not --

QUESTION; That's what the court, that's what 

your Court of Appeals said.

MR. GRUNOW; Yes, Your Honor, but on issues 

totally immaterial to the limited purpose for which the 

state was introducing this evidence.

QUESTION; And that's not what your Court of

Appeals said.
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HE. GRUNOH Your Honor, if it is not what

they said --

QUESTION* He could have been cross examined.

MR. GRUNOW: That is correct .

QUESTION* Could the defendant have called him 

as a hostile witness and cross examined him?

MR. GRUNOW* Absolutely, Your Honor.

QUESTION; Hay I ask — oh, excuse me.

QUESTION; Is it yoar position that the Court 

of Appeals -- is that the court that decided this?

MR. GRUNOW; The Court of Criminal Appeals.

QUESTION* The Court of Criminal Appeals -- 

that the Court of Criminal Appeals would have come out 

the same even if the confesser had been in the 

courtroom?

HR. GRUNOW* I believe they would in the 

sense, Your Honor, that the question was whether the 

defendant was in fact subject to cross examination on 

the stand. Availability was really not an issue. 

Everyone seems to agree that he was in the jail next 

door, and that made no difference whether he was 

actually in the courtroom or over in the jail, the fact 

that he was not taking the stand seemed to be the 

turning point in this case.

QUESTION; Kay I ask a question about an

17
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alternative way of handling the problem?

As I understand it, the point w as that 

Peewle's confession did not have some facts in. it that 

the defendant's confession did have, and you wanted to 

show therefore the defendant's could not have been 

parroted, and after reading the confession, as I 

understand the record, the officer was asked were these 

acxts in the confession which you just read, and he 

denied as to each of those facts.

Why couldn't he have been asked those 

questions without reading the confession, and then had 

the confession in the courtroom in order to verify 

whether or not the testimony was true?

Why was it necessary to read the confession 

and not just identify those points?

MB. GRUNOW; One of the reasons why the state 

found it important to do more was that it was not only 

the emissions in Peele's statement that made the 

parroting claim incredible; there were numerous 

differences, only slight differences between similar 

events that both narrated that would show that it was 

impossible for them to have merely been the result cf a 

parroting claim.

QUESTION! So you would agree that if you were 

focusing on the omissions, and that were the whole

18

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

20 F ST., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 (202) 628-9300



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

point, it would not have been necessary to read the 

confession.

MB. GRUNOW: That's correct.

QUESTION! So your point is there is a little 

difference in the style and the language and so forth?

MR. GRUNOW; Yes, Your Honor, that it was for 

the jury's benefit to see both --

QUESTION; Well, but why wouldn't the 

impeachment have been adequate just with the omission 

point? It seems to me that is the most persuasive, 

because you had independent evidence I think at the 

scene that coincided with what the defendant had said 

and what had been omitted from Peele's confession, so 

that I don't know why you had to -- it seems to me that 

is by far the more persuasive impeachment of the two.

MR. GRUNOW: It may he the more persuasive, 

Your Honor, but we are here arguing whether the 

defendant’s confrontation rights were violated, and we 

believe that because of weighing the factors that I 

mentioned initially, those factors tipped the scale in 

favor of the state's introduction of the complete 

statement in this case.

QUESTION; In the closing argument did t he

prosecutor make much of the difference in style? I know

he made a great deal of the omissions.

19
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HP. GRUNOWi He did, Your Honor.

QUESTIONj He did.

CHIEF JUSTICE BURGER; Hr. Schwartz?

ORAL ARGUMENT OF JOSHUA IRA SCHWARTZ, ESQ,

CN BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES 

AS AMICUS CURIAE IN SUPPORT OF PETITIONER

MR. SCHWARTZ; Thank you, Mr. Chief Justice, 

and may it please the Court;

In view of the United States, the decision of 

the Tennessee Court of Criminal Appeals represents a 

misapplication of the doctrine of this Court's decision 

in Bruton v. United States. Contrary to the argument of 

respondent, this Court's decision in Bruton does not 

hold that the recaption in evidence for any purpose of 

the inculpatory statement of a nontestifying accomplice 

necessarily violates the confrontation clause, nor does 

it hold that instructions that limit the use of such a 

statement are in all cases ineffective.

Rather, as we understand it, the Court held 

that in light of the inadmissibility of the hearsay 

statement incriminating Bruton in that case, the 

critical weight added to the prosecution's case by the 

declarant statement there and the general availability 

of separate trials as a device to avoid the problem that 

existed in Bruton, there was no sufficient justification

20

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

20 F ST., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 (202) 628-9300



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

for running the risk that the limiting instruction given 

in Bruton would prove an insufficisnt bulwark against 

the risk of unfair prejudice that would result if the 

instruction were disregarded.

This case differs from Bruton in numerous 

critical respects which we believe call for a different 

conclusion hera 3nd require that the judgment of the 

Tennessee Court of Criminal Appeals be reversed.

Bruton emphasizes the inadmissibility under 

the traditional rules of evidence as against the 

Defendant Bruton of the declarant's out of court 

statement. Here, of course, the declarant Peele*s 

statement was admissible against respondent for a proper 

purpose, and there doesn't really seem to be any debate 

that the state had a legitimate objective here and it 

was one that we deem compelling. That purpose, of 

course, was to enable the jury to assess the 

respondent's claim that his own statement was a coerced 

imitation of the declarant's, and we agree with the 

state's argument that the very best evidence available 

to the jury to assess that claim was to look at the 

statement itself.

This is partly. Justice Stevens, because of 

the fact that -- I think it would naturally occur to a 

juror that the best way is to look at the two statements
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side by side to see what all the nuances are, and while 

it may have been sufficient, I might well -- we as 

jurors might well have been persuaded by the omissions 

factor, a juror in assessing this claim I think would 

want to see the whole thing, and I think it was an 

important kind of evidence.

QUESTION; But isn't the argument also 

available that the burden really was on the defendant to 

prove his parroting claim? I mean, he's the one who 

brought it up, and I would suppose if there were merit 

to it, he would have been the one to put the confession 

in .

HR. SCHWARTZ; Well, th 

fact in that ragard. The defenda 

that and failed in doing so on th 

statement was hearsay. At the po 

that occurred, it may have been p 

defendant did signal his own unde 

the most appropriate way to prove 

attempting to get the statement b 

probably does not lie terribly we 

mouth to say that this is an inap 

demonstrating this.

The other factor which, 

further on your colloquy with the

22

is case has a peculiar 

nt did attempt to do 

e grounds that the 

int in the case where 

remature, but the 

rstanding that this was 

his claim by 

efore the court. So it 

11 in the respondent's 

propriate way of

if I can pick up 

Attorney General, if

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

20 F ST., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 (202) 628-9300



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the sheriff had simply denied, as he did, that these 

particular facts were in Peele's statement, there would 

of course have been the question of whether that was 

true.

Now, you said. Justice Stevens -- 

QUESTION: Well, I am suggesting have the

confession in the courtroom so that the defendant then 

would have had the opportunity to show he was lying.

NR. SCHWARTZ; Bu t if that statement went to

I am not sure, wh ich would ultimately have tc

assess whether he was telling the truth.

QUESTION; I'm not suggesting it would have tc 

go to the jury. If the officer says ft, B, ani C are in 

one statement and not the other, and they are both 

sitting here in the courtroom and nobody submits them to 

the jury, that testimony is pretty persuasive.

MB. SCHWARTZ; Well, that may be, but we 

suggest that if there was a controversy, the jury would 

be the judge of that, and that to one side, there were 

significant additional factors in terms of assessing the 

document as a whole.

I think the rational juror would want to see 

the documents.

As for the question --

QUESTION; Did they see the documents?
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ME. SCHWARTZ; It was introduced as an 

exhibit. I don’t know from the record --

QUESTION; Do they take exhibits to the jury 

room in Tennessee?

MR. SCHWARTZ; I'm probably the wrong person 

to ask that. I believe my colleague has a minute or so 

of rebuttal.

QUESTION; All right.

MR. SCHWARTZ; On the question which was the 

only question material to the state's purpose in putting 

the statement before the jury on rebuttal, whether the 

declarant had actually made the statement, the purpose 

and requirements of the confrontation clause were 

satisfied, Sheriff Papantoniou, through whose testimony 

the statement was put before the jury initially, was 

available for cross examination. This Court's decision 

in Dutton v. Evans establishes, we believe, that there 

is no, in those circumstances, there is no confrontation 

clause problem, and we believe that that conclusion is 

supported not only by the opinion for ths plurality of 

Justice Stewart, but also by Justice Harlan's concurring 

opinion, and therefore was endorsed by a majority of the 

Court in Dutton.

Conversely, we would emphasize, the state's 

purpose in laying the declarant's statement before the
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jury could not have been served by presenting the 

declarant’s testimony in lieu of his statement. Because 

of this unique situation that the live testimony 

wouldn't have served the state's purpose and the 

statement did not go to the -- was not offered for the 

truth of its content, it would have been very peculiar

to imps e upon the sta te as respon dent wou Id have it and

as the Tennessee C our t of C rimina 1 Appeal s had i t, t;he

burden of calling the decla rant a s a wi tn ess sim ply so

tha t re spondent co uld cross exami n e him o n matte rs

out side of the sco pe of the state 's case.

Indeed, if one ac cept's the res pendent 'S

pra mise f one might we 11 ask wha t examinat ion the stait e

was r eg uired to un der take o f Mr. Peele. Was thi s --

QUESTION • Do you mean that in Kent uck y wh en

you rut a wi tn ess on the st and yo u can as k him

anythin g?

Isn't t h at what y cu sai d?

MR. SCHW ARTZi I don *t believe I said that. •

QUESTION »• Well, you sa id you c ouIdn't limiit

the exa mination.

MR. SCHWARTZ; Oh , I do not

expert on Tennessee.

QUESTION ; If he put a witn

Tennessee, couldn't the def end ant ask
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MR. SCHWARTZ; Well, there may be procedural 

rules about scope of cross examination, but we would 

suppose that if the scope had limited its examination, 

that may

QUESTIO 8 : Well, isn’t that the normal way to

produce evidence, if you ha ve got a witness and a

w ritten statement, isn’t it normal that you put your

witness on ?

MR. SCHWARTZ; But if the purpose of

QUESTION; Isn’t the normal way to do it that

way ?

MR. SCHWARTZ; Rot if one's purpose is to 

prove that the statement was made rather than --

QUESTION; You mean, not if you don’t want 

cross examination.

MR. SCHWARTZ; If the purpose -- if the 

defendant’s purpose was to be able to examine Mr. Feele, 

that purpose could have been fully satisfied. The 

Court’s decision in Ohio v. Roberts makes it clear that 

whether it is billed cross examination or direct 

examination, a person who is physically available, as 

Peele certainly was -- his location was known to all.

He was conveniently located in the county jail -- could 

have been called as a defense witness and there is no 

question that whether it is called direct or cross
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examination, he could have bean examined on the topics

that were of interest to the respondent 

It makes practical sense, we 

leave this choice in this situation to 

because it is the respondent who wants 

declarant on subjects that are outside 

state’s case.

In this situation there were 

possibilities.

would submit, tc 

the respondent 

to examine the 

the scope of the

several

QUESTION; I thought the respondent didn't 

want this in there at all.

MR. SCRWARTZs But it is the respondent's 

complaint that --

QUESTION; Don’t -- please don’t tell me you 

are doing him a favor.

(General laughter.)

MR. SCHWARTZ; No doubt the respondent would 

have preferred not to have that statement in, but we do 

not believe the law affords him the choice of saying 

that his -- of testifying that his was a coerced 

imitation of Peele's confession and still not having the 

jury have a look at that statement.

If respondent believed that it would be in his 

interest to call the declarant as a witness, and he 

deemed unacceptable the risk that the court’s limiting
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instruction would confine the jury properly, he was free

to call the declarant as a witness, and he was f 

able to fulfill any legitimate confrontation obj 

by that process. Of course, as we said, the res 

was equally available to the respondent situated

ccun ty jail.

If thi e c e s po n d e n t - - if th e decla rant

the respondent had called the dec la ran t, th ere a

seve ral possibi.lities. The d ecla rant migh t have

r ei t erated h is confess ion, as thi s cou rt' s idecis

Mels c n v. 0 ' Neill poin ts out. Th at su rely would

have put the re■ sponden tin a bett er position.

It is> possible that he would have disa

the confessi on.. This would h ave helpe d the def e

some sense, but if the defend ant thoug ht th;at wo

occu r, it is not clear to us why that could not

been done. It clearly could ha ve been done as p

the defense cas;e.

And finally, it is possible that the d 

would have taken the Fifth Amendment and would h 

unavailable. And if that were to have occurred, 

would be a very extreme result and nonetheless h 

even if that had occurred, there would have been 

opportunity for the state to use the statement.

The final point that T would like to c
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on if time allows concerns the bearing of this Court's 

decision in Parker v. Randolph on this case. The 

Tennessee Court of Criminal Appeals thought that Parker 

v. Randolph had no bearing because this case did not 

involve a joint trial.

In that respect we believe that the Court of 

Criminal Appeals got the matter precisely backwards, as 

is detailed in our brief.

Thank you, Mr. Chief Justice.

CHIEF JUSTICE BURGERi Mr. Rogers?

ORAL ARGUMENT OF LANCE J. ROGERS, ESQ.

ON BEHALF CF RESPONDENT

MR. ROGERS* Thank you, Mr. Chief Justice, and 

may it please the Courts

This case involves the question how to 

acc cirircdate two valid competing interests. On the one 

hand we have the state's interest in impeaching a 

testifying defendant, and on the other hand we have the 

defendant's interest in preserving his confrontation 

rights

It is our position that both parties here had 

an interest in the confession of Clifford Peele. The 

state was interested in demonstrating that the two 

confessions were not identical, and the defense was 

interested in preserving Street's confrontation rights
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by making sure that those portions of the confession of 

Clifford Peele which directly accused Street of 

committing the crime charged, were not read to the 

jury.

Both of these purposes could have been served 

in this case if the state had simply redacted the 

portions which directly incriminated Street or abided by 

the original agreement —

QUESTION! Hr. Rogers, could I interrupt you 

for a minute and get it out on the table the thing that 

troubles me?

Why, if your — if th e de fen se t h eory was

cor r ect in this w h ole matter, why w oul d it not h ave

ser ved the def e nda nt *s purpose to h ave the fact that the

con f ess ion impl ica ted the def endant br ought bef o re the

jur y? Why would y ou w ant it redact ed?

Wa sn ' t that the heart of the argument you were

making?

MR. ROGERSj No, we didn't want the parts that 

accused him of taking an active part --

QUESTION; But you brought it out on direct 

examination that the confession implicated him, and 

that’s why, according to your theory, there was this 

parroting.

MR. ROGERS; Sell, we think an inference is a
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little bit less prejudicial than the words from a 

virtual eye witness to the crime as far as jury --

QUESTION: Was it not your theory at trial

that the reason your client confessed was that this 

other man had said he was guilty of the crime?

MR. ROGERS: And because the sheriff forced

him to.

QUESTION: Right, but wasn’t it part of the

whole theory that you were trying to develop was that 

there was another confession that implicated your 

client?

point?

If that wasn’t your point, what was your

MR. ROGERS: No -- well, it was our point, but 

we thought at the time that the --

QUESTION: Then how can you redact the heart

of ycur point?

MR. ROGERS: We can redact the part that 

accuses Joe Street of actually participating in the 

crime.

There

which the state 

would like to d 

Papantoniou to 

then engaged in

were several di 

deemed critical 

emonstrate how. 

the stand to rea 

an agreement wi

ff erences in this

to th eir positio

They had called

d Peel e * s confess

th the defense to

case 

n, and 

Sheriff 

ion and 

merely

I
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highlight the differences. That is, in response tc the 

questions from the prosecutor, they would highlight the 

differences between the two confessions without reading 

all of Peele's confession to the jury.

In pursuit of this agreement, the Court 

instructed the sheriff to read the confession to 

himself, which he did, and at this point the prosecutor 

approached the bench and then requested permission to 

read the entire text into evidence. The Court reminded 

him of the original agreement, but the prosecutor 

claimed it would be more coherent if he read the entire 

text into evidence.

He then read the entire text into evidence and 

then proceeded to do precisely what he said he could not 

do, and that is have Sheriff Papantonious highlight 

differences between the two of them in response to 

questioning without mentioning any of the portions of 

the confession which accused Joe Street of participating 

in the crime.

There were seven critical distinctions, and on 

closing argument, the prosecutor again went through 

those seven distinctions.

It is our position that the confrontation 

clause was violated once the state went beyond what was 

necessary to show that the two statements were not
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identical and that this violation was not cured either 

through limiting instructions or by simply labeling it 

non-hearsay.

QUESTION; Counsel, I am really a little 

puzzled by how the confrontation clause should require 

the state to call the declarant when the statement of 

the declarant is not introduced for purposes of proving 

the truth of the contents of the statement.

MR. ROGERS; Well, it is our position --

QUESTION; That's such a basic rule of 

evidence, it is hard for me to understand how the 

confrontation clause comes in at all.

MR. ROGERS; Well, we think that the heart cf 

the Bruton decision is that a jury is simply unable to 

disregard the dramatic impact of an accomplice's 

confession, particularly --

QUESTION; Well, that might invoke a due

process concern, but it is very hard for me to s ee

it raises a confrontation issue.

MR . ROGERS; Well , I think it was labeled a

confrontation issue in Brut cn because Evans was not

available for cross examination regarding that 

statement, and I think we can say the same thing about 

Clifford Peele.

QUESTION; But he was available certainly to
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the defense if they had chosen to call him, wasnt* ht?

MR. ROGERS; If we could have called him and 

gotten him -- and labeled him a hostile witness, we 

still would have been faced with the situation where the 

state had already accomplished what they had wanted to 

accomplish and gotten the confession before the jury 

because as I see it, the confrontation clause has two 

prongs. It is cross examination and requiring the 

declarant to make the accusation under oath in a 

judicial forum.

Well, the first prong had already been removed 

because Peele had already made the statement through 

Sheriff Papantoniou ’s mouth.

QUESTION; Yes, but as I understand it, the 

trial judge’s theory of admitting that was that it was 

independently admissible of the truth to rebut your 

client's contention that his confession was just kind of 

a parrot job on Peele’s confession.

MR. ROGERS; Fight, because it was not being 

offered for the truth of the matter asserted, a 

hearsay --

QUESTION; And there you don’t have -- if it's 

a legitimate hearsay exception to the confrontation 

clause, you don’t have those two requirements, I don’t 

think.
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MR. ROGERS; I still think that under Bruton, 

labeling it hearsay -- I don’t think there’s any 

distinction between telling the jury don’t use this 

confession against this defendant, use it against that 

defendant, and don't use this confession for the truth 

of the matter asserted, but do use it against the 

def endant.

I think the jury is very quickly able to 

pierce through to the important part of the confession, 

and that is the aocusatory part.

QUESTION; Well, was there any independent 

grounds for admissibility in Bruton such as there was 

here?

MR. ROGERS; Not against Bruton himself, no, 

there wasn't, but I don’t believe that that’s the 

critical -- I dont think that’s critical to the decision 

in Bruton.

QUFSTION; Well, isn't this much like or 

analogous to the situation in the Harris case where it 

was held that you could properly admit for impeachment 

purposes statements that were inadmissible under 

Miranda, not for the truth cf those statements but for 

impeachment, and isn’t this the same thing?

KR. ROGERS; No, I don't believe it is,

Justice O’Connor. In Harris and Hass and that line of
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cases, the sword/shield cases, we engage in a balancing 

test, balancing the reason for the admission against the 

reason for the exclusion. In those cases we exclude -- 

evidence that was reliable and trustworthy was excluded 

and the truth was frustrated in order to deter police 

misconduct, in order to get them to comply with Miranda, 

but there was nothing wrong with the statements 

themselves. They were not involuntary or coerced.

So the balancing test favored using the 

evidence to enhance the truth finding function of the 

trial.

In this case, though, Peele's statement was 

excluded precisely because it did constitute a threat to 

truth determination either under a hearsay analysis or 

confrontation analysis. Under Bruton, the in-custody 

confession of an accomplice is inevitably suspect, and I 

think that makes the distinction between this case and 

the svord/shield cases.

QUESTION* Is it the fact that your client 

today sought to introduce the same statement himself 

earlier in the trial, Mr. Peele’s statement?

MR. ROGERS: Yes, that’s a fact.

QUESTION; So the argument rings just a litte 

bit hollow, doesn't it?

MR. ROGERS: Well, at that point in the trial
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the state had given every indication that they were 

going to call Clifford Peale on direct examination, and 

so as a tactical matter, there was an interest in trying 

to diffuse what w? thought would be his potentially 

incriminating, indeed, devastating testimony against Joe 

Street, and also to introduce it for whatever relevance 

it would have on the parrotinq point.

At a minimum, though, our position there is no 

more inconsistent than that of the state because the 

state objected at that point to introduction of that 

statement.

It is our position that to the jury, that the 

impeachment value of Clifford Peele's confession was not 

that the two statements were not identical, but rather, 

that it rebutted Joe Street's alibi defense by placing 

him at the scene of the crime and assigning him an 

active role in the murder. There was no physical 

evidence linking Joe Street to the crime, and there were 

no eye witnesses presented by the state.

Peele's confession, however, provided the 

state with its missing eye witness testimony free of the 

risk of cross examination and free of the risk of the 

jury viewing his demeanor.

We believe also that the Tennessee Court of 

Criminal Appeals properly interpreted the interlocking
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confession doctrine by holding that it does not apply to 

severed trials. fit joint trial the state has a 

compelling interest in introducing the confessions of 

the ccdefendants. The state is presented with a 

dilemma. They have two or maybe even three perfectly 

valid confessions which they wish to introduce against 

the confessers, but under a rigid Bruton application, 

they are prohibited from introducing those confessions 

against the confessers.

Parker and the similar interlocking confession 

cases allows them to introduce the confessions against 

the confessers, but they had already accomplished that 

purpose in this case, and we feel that that is a 

distinction.

We also believe that this Court should decline 

to reverse pursuant to the doctrine of harmless error. 

The Tennessee Court of Criminal Appeals concluded, after 

examining the record, that they could not say beyond a 

reasonable doubt that the confrontation violation here 

had no effect on the verdict or that the evidence of 

guilt was otherwise overwhelming. They could not say 

that the jury would have returned the same verdict 

without Clifford Peele's confession. Other than Joe 

Street's own recanted confession, there was no physical 

evidence or eye witnesses presented by the state.
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QUESTION; What if -- what if Peele had been 

there and the state had put him on the stand and they 

had -- they asked about his confession and he confirmed 

that he made those statements and h'e says they are 

stillcorrect, what -- could the state use that 

confession then against -- to prove your client's 

guilt?

ME. ROGERS; If they called Clifford Peele on 

direct, yes, they could.

QUESTION: And if they had called him and he

had been in the courtroom, could they have used it for 

impeachment?

MR. ROGERS: I think it would also be relevant 

on the impeachment .

QUESTION: And it would h ave been admissible,

sion would have b een ad mi ssible.

MR. ROGERS : Yes.

QUESTION.- For im peachm en t purgeses.

MR. ROGERS ; Yes.

QUESTION; And to prove t he guilt of the

defendant.

MR. ROGERS: Yes, if he had been there in the 

courtroom personally.

QUESTION: Are you sure they could have

impeached their own witness? You are willing to concede
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that, put the man on the stand and

MR. ROGEESi I’m sorry, I have misinterpreted 

Tennessee law. You have to have --

QUESTIONS I have tried a lot of cases where I 

couldn't do it, I know.

MR. ROGERS: Yes, I’m sorry.

It is our position that Peele's confession 

provided the state with its missing eye witness 

testimony and that it also provided the jury with all

the requisite e lem en ts of t he homicide had they ch os en

to believe that Jo e St reet ’ s confession was

in v oluntary.

Getti ng back to m y original point, I t hi nk

thi s really is a s impl e cas e requiring the accom mo d a ticn

of two valid co mpe ting inte rests, the state's in te re st

in shewing that th e tw c con fessions were not ide nt. ic al,

and the defense in tere st in keeping out those po rt io n s

of the confession which directly accuse Joe Street of 

committing the crime charged. Both purposes could have 

been satisfied by either redacting the statement or 

abiding by the original agreement to merely have the 

sheriff highlight those seven differences which the 

state demonstrated that they could well do, and they 

demonstrated again in closing argument when they 

highlighted the seven differences again for the jury
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without referring to any of the portions of Clifford 

Peele's confession which incriminated the respondent. 

QUESTION: Well, Mr. Rogers, are you

suggesting that any time you 

interests that you say could 

the question of how they are 

a state court has to look to 

on ?

have the sort of competing 

have been balanced here, 

balanced is a question that 

the federal constitution

MR. ROGERS: I think that there they could 

look to either the federal or state constitution on the 

issue, but when there is a confrontation problem 

involved, I think it is important to look at the 

balancing and competing interests precisely because of 

the reasons, when I responded to Justice O'Connor’s 

question regarding the sword/shield cases. You need 

that balancing, the reasons for the admission versus the 

reasons for the exclusion, and if they can accomplish it 

in this case without referring to those portions that 

directly accuse him of committing the crime charged, T 

think we should weight that on balance.

It is our position that the confession of 

Clifford Peele devastated the case for the respondent.

He presented an alibi defense with 13 witnesses in 

support of that alibi defense. He took the stand and 

asserted that alibi deefense and presented a plausible
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explanation for his own confession The state presented

no physical evidence, presented no eye witnesses against 

Joe Street. All they had was his own recanted 

confession. Except for Clifford Peele , reading his 

confession not only was unnecessary but provided the 

state with its missing eye witness testimony.

QUESTION; Is that entirely correct? Isn't it 

true — now, maybe my recollection is wrong, but there 

were some things in his statement that were corroborated 

by physical evidence at the scene.

Is that wrong?

ME. EOGEES ; Only to the extent that Clifford 

Peele's confession corroborated certain things found at 

the scene.

QUESTION: But there was -- even without

Peele's confession, you say there was nothing in the 

Defendant's confession that was corroborated by physical 

evidence like, for example, the rope and things like 

that?

HR. ROGERS: Well, yes, I think items like 

that, but I meant there weren't -- there were extensive 

tests, hair, fingerprints, things like that, and none of 

these were found in this case.

We respectfully reguest that this Court affirm 

the Tennessee Court of Criminal Appeals.
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CHIEF JUSTICE BURGER; Do you have anything 

further, Counsel?

You have one minute remaining.

ORAL ARGUMENT OF ROBERT A. GRUNOW, ESQ.

ON BEHALF OF PETITIONER -- Rebuttal

QUESTION; Mr. Attorney General, could I ask

one?

In Tennessee, is there any procedure in a 

criminal case where when the defendant in this case made 

that kind of a statement, that I was made to do this, 

the other confession can say have a side bar 

conference and tell him that if you pursue that line of 

testimony, I am going to let this confession in?

Is there any way to do that in Tennessee?

MR. GRUNOW; By a side bar conference, there 

could be, but there's no formalized procedure that way.

QUESTION; But it could be done that way.

MR. GRUNOW; I suppose it could, yes.

QUESTION; I'm looking to the future, that's

all .

MR. GRUNOW; In response to the question about 

taking the confession into the jury room, there is no 

indication in this record that that was done. However, 

in the appendix on page 350 it indicates that pursuant 

to an objection which was overruled, the jury was
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allowed to read Peele's confession before deliberating.

Unless there are any further questions/ I have 

nothing further.

CHIEF JUSTICE BURGER; Thank you, gentlemen.

The case is submitted.

We will hear arguments next in City of 

Cleburne v. Cleburne living Center.

(Whereupon, at 10:55 o'clock a.m., the case in 

the above-entitled matter was submitted.)
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